
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

February 23, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Feb 23 6:15 p.m. Executive Session, Pierre Moran Middle School 
Feb 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Pierre Moran Middle School 
Feb 23 Immediately 

following 
Public Work Session, Pierre Moran Middle School 

Feb 29 7:00 p.m. Public Work Session, Elkhart City Council Chambers 
Mar 8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Mar 15 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Mar 16 1:00 p.m. Public Work Session, PDC 
Mar 18 1:00 p.m. Public Work Session, Room A111, EACC 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

 

D. Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

E. SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
All State Middle School Honor Choir member 

 

F. BUILDING REPORT 
Building Energy Report – Ted Foland 

Cynthia Bonner - Principal 

 
G. MINUTES - 

February 9, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 

February 9, 2016 – Public Work Session 
February 16, 2016 - Public Work Session 

 

H. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – January 31, 2016 

 
 



BOARD AGENDA February 23, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 Fund Loans – The Business Office reports on fund loans made at the end of 
January 2106. 

 
 Bid Award - The Business Office recommends Board approval of the bid award for 

West Side Middle School for asphalt replacement. 

 
 401(a) – The Business Office recommends approval of resolutions to amend and 

restate 401 (a) retirement plans. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Student Services – Report on Cares 
 

 Board Policy GCEA – Substitute Teacher Pay Schedule - The administration 

presents proposed revisions to Board Policy GCEA – Substitute Teacher Pay 
Schedule, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Board Policy GDBA-6 – Paraprofessionals’ Compensation Plan - The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy GDBA-6 – 

Paraprofessionals’ Compensation Plan, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Board Policy IGBC-E – Student Emails - The administration presents proposed 

new Board Policy IGBC-E – Student Emails, for initial consideration. 
 

 Grant Approval – The administration recommends approval for the submission 

of the following grant applications: 
 

to the Indiana Youth Institute from Mary Daly for registration  at the 

Indiana Speech Language Hearing Association 2016 Annual Convention.  
 
to the Elkhart Education Foundation for the following grants: 

 
from West Side for Winning Wildcats 
from Beardsley for First Lego League Robotics Club supplies 

from Central for Shrek the Musical 
from Memorial for a wrestling mat 
from Central for Blue Blazer Indoor Track Surface 

from Monger for MSTAR awards banquet 
 

 Overnight Trip Request - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 
 

J. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 

the administration. 
 
 



BOARD AGENDA February 23, 2016 
 
 

3 
   

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 

 
K. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  February  1, 2016 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Kelly Carmichael 

RE:  Donation Approval 

The Elkhart Rotary Club has graciously donated $500 to Pinewood to host a reading event at Highland 

Mobile Home Park.  The reading event will be on a Saturday in the spring.  We will use the donation to 

purchase books and popcorn to give away to each child that attends.  We will also have community 

members reading books at the event.   

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 Elkhart Rotary Club 
 PO BOX 933 
 Elkhart, IN 46515 
 

















 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

February 9, 2016 
 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol  

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 

introduced themselves.  Junior Olivia Haworth represented Central High 
School (CHS).  Ms. Haworth is the Student Council president, on the 
Move2Stand leadership team, the Prom committee, National Honor 

Society, and yearbook editor.  Recent highlights included ACT tests were 
taken; girls swimming took 3rd place at sectionals; Sydney Dygert broke 
a school record in the 100 meter fly at sectionals; blood drive was 

extremely successful; Winter Guard placed 3rd at competition; 
gymnastics placed 1st at Lakeland invitational; seniors Brian Vance and 
Dakota Bowman were voted Indiana Football Coaches Association (IFCA) 

Academic All-State in football; and rehearsals for Shrek the Musical are 
taking place.  Upcoming events include winter sports activities, Say 
What Karaoke, and a Sadie Hawkins dance.  Project Y reading camp at 

Beardsley is going very well and plans are moving forward for the 
unified track and field meet.  Olivia commented on the shift in goals of 
the project from simply a day off to helping the Beardsley students and 

giving back to the community.  Nolan Grose, a sophomore from 
Memorial High School (MHS) is involved in class Olympics, basketball, 
football and baseball.  He reported on the success of the music 

department at recent competitions including multiple qualifiers for state 
competitions; 8 wrestlers going to semi-state in Fort Wayne; the Sadie 
Hawkins dance sponsored by the Varsity Club; and six college 

commitments.  He invited the Board to attend the Student Coffee House 
on February 18th and the Booster Bash on February 27th. 

SSAC 

Representatives 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donation made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $250.00 from 

Elkhart County Farm Bureau, Inc. for start up costs of the Future 
Farmers of America (FFA) chapter at the Elkhart Area Career Center 
(EACC); and a Fuller Model RT14710 truck transmission and an Easton 

Model DSP40 truck differential valued at $600.00 from Kip Sanner at 
Weller Truck Parts for the diesel service technology program at the 
EACC. 

 

Gift Acceptance 
 

Matt Werbiansky, EACC principal, introduced Ryan Gortney, motorcycle 
outdoor power technology teacher, and the members of two Hot 

Rodders teams which placed 7th and 12th at the national “Hot Rodders of 
Tomorrow” competition.  Mr. Gortney gave a brief background of what is 
necessary to qualify for the competitions and the dedication and hours 

spent in preparation.  Certificates were presented to Team Moroso 
members Nicholas Reames, Davison Emery, Blade Corpe, Ryan Bell and 
Ryan Wickizer, and Team Flex-A-Lite members Lucas Clark, Garrett 

Rieth, Brandon Lovell, Dakota Ysais, and Edward Mozader.  The students 
earned $250,000 in scholarships through their participation at the event. 
 

Special 
Recognition 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
January 21, 2016 – Board Retreat/Public Work Session 

January 22, 2016 – Board Retreat/Public Work Session 
January 26, 2016 – Public Work Session 
January 26, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$9,487,128.30 as shown on the February 9, 2016, claims listing.  In 

response to Board inquiry, Doug Hasler, executive director of support 
services, clarified the claims paid out of the Early/After School Child 
Care fund. (Codified File 1516-90) 

 

Payment of 
Claims  

The Board received a report on the transfer of appropriations of the 
2015 tax fund. 

 

Appropriations 
Transfer Report 

By unanimous action, an extra-curricular purchase of ISTEP t-shirts for 
students and staff at West Side Middle School to be used as an incentive 

for students to give their best efforts on ISTEP, in the amount of 
$2,800.00. 
 

Extra Curricular 
Purchases 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1516-91) 
 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

  



3 
 

Victoria Toney, supervisor of special education/mild intervention, 
introduced Lindsey Cox, special education teacher at West Side who 

gave a presentation on student led conferences.  Mrs. Cox reported the 
student led conferences are a way of engaging students in their 
Individual Education Plan (IEP) by identifying their strengths and 

weaknesses.  The goal is to help students have a better understanding 
of themselves and to feel they fit in.  In response to Board inquiry as to 
how the program is being received, Mrs. Cox replied some students 

engaged from the beginning and some did not, others have now been 
able to vocalize their need for help and have learned there is a great 
support system available to them. 

 

Department 
Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Elkhart Teachers Association regarding new pay 

rates for current and additional added pay positions.  (Codified File 
1516-92) 
 

Memorandum 
of 

Understanding 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 8 
Memorial wrestlers to travel to Fort Wayne on February 12 and 13, to 
compete in semi-state wrestling matches.  

 

Overnight Trip 
Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a grant to 

Heart of Cook Foundation from the Elkhart Central Orchestra to 
purchase violins.  (Codified File 1516-93) 
 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the February 9, 2016 listing. (Codified File 1516-94) 

 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

Retirement of the following three (3) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated, with years of service in parentheses:  

Rebecca Hindman - FACS at Memorial (22) 

Martin McCrindle - public safety at EACC (15) 
Barbara VanWechel - FACS at Central, (15) 
 

Certified 
Retirement 

Voluntary leave for certified staff member Dorren Shelt, grade 6 
PEP at Pinewood, beginning 2/15/16 and ending 2/26/16. 
 

Voluntary 
Leave 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members  
effective on dates indicated: 

Karen Keranen, special education at Memorial, 2/1/16 

Lisa Munoz, language arts at Central, 6/1/16 
 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

  



4 
 

Regular employment of the following five (5) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Nichole Carey - paraprofessional at EACC, 1/26/16 
Ivy Copeland - food service at Hawthorne, 1/29/16 

Virginia Jackson - lunch para at West Side, 1/29/16 
Teresa Perry - food service at Cleveland, 1/29/16 
Susan Raifsnider - paraprofessional at Bristol, 2/5/16 

 

Classified  
Employment 

Retirement of the following three (3) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated, with years of service in parentheses:  

Jeffrey Coyner - maintenance at Building Services, 5/31/16 
(15) 
Gregory Gary - custodian at EACC, 2/29/16 (29) 

Sarah Whitmer, secretary at West Side, 4/29/16 (32) 
 

Classified 
Retirements 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 

on dates indicated:  
Samantha Avila - food service at Memorial, 1/22/16 
Alicia Harris - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 1/29/16 

Judith McCarthy, food service at Monger/Roosevelt, 
1/28/16 

 

Classified 

Resignations 
 

A staff member commented on the unclear memos regarding Friday, 
February 12th day off without pay for paraprofessionals.  Memorandums 

sent were not specific in identifying what school year the change in 
policy would take place.  In response, the administration will look in to 
clarification.  

 

From the 
Audience 

 

Dr. Haworth congratulated two departments on jobs well done:  
Communication and Data with regards to the District’s website; and 

Student Services regarding issues on disproportionality. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 

 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution establishing 

individual performance goals for Dr. Haworth for the 2015-2016 school 
year. 
 

From the Board 

 

The Board was introduced to Michelle White, second grade student 
teacher at Feeser. 
 

From the Board 
 

A Board member commented on students contributing to the 
Superintendent’s goal of increasing IREAD scores by their participation 
in Project Y Reading Camp at Beardsley. 

 

From the Board 
 

congratulated Michelle Sokol of the Elkhart Truth on her WNIT 
presentation with regards to ECS. 

 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m. 
 

 

Adjournment 



5 
 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
February 9, 2016 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 
approximately 8:10 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Rob Haworth 
 Shawn Hannon Dawn McGrath 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a communications update from Shawn Hannon, Assistant 

Superintendent of Communication and Data, and agenda items for the 

February 23, 2016 regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 10:00 p.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
February 16, 2016 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent:  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board met to review proposed bylaws and revisions to the policies 

adopted for Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:35 a.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, President 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 







 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Date: February 17, 2016 

To:   Board of School Trustees 

From:   Anthony J. Gianesi 

RE: Recommendation for Award – West Side Middle School Asphalt Project 

 

On February 16, 2016 bids were received for the West Side Middle School Asphalt Project. 

All bids have been reviewed by Elkhart Community Schools and Fidelis Management for 

compliance with plans and specifications prepared by Fidelis Management. 

The Business Office recommends award of a contract in the amount enumerated (see Fidelis 

Management recommendation dated February 16, 2016) to Rieth-Riley Construction Company, 

Inc. of Goshen, Indiana as the lowest and best, most responsive and most responsible bidder.   

 Base Bid:    $214,245.00 

Alternate No. 2 (Improve drainage)     $9,600.00  

 TOTAL     $ 223,845.00 

The project includes the replacement of the east parking lot and expansion of the existing 

drainage system. 

Funding for this project will come from the 2014 Referendum bonds. 

 

 

Anthony J. Gianesi 

Director of Building Services 

 



Elkhart Community Schools  

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center  

2720 California Road  

Elkhart, Indiana 46514 

 

February 16, 2016 

 

Re: West Side Middle School Asphalt Replacement 

 

Members of the Board: 

 

Legal ads for “NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS” were published on February 2, 2016 and February 9, 2016 in 

two different publications. 

 

Bids were opened and read aloud on February 16, 2016 at 10:00 AM. The bidding documents were 

reviewed by Fidelis Management for bidding compliance. 

 

The base bid includes replacement of the east parking lot. Alternate 1, that is not being recommended 

at this time, is for west parking lot. Alternate 2 is for the replacement of the existing drainage structures 

at the east parking lot and recommend that this alternate be accepted.  

 

The base bid work and alternate are within the projected budget and we are hereby recommending the 

award of the contract to Rieth-Riley Construction Company, Inc. The contract amount will be $ 

223,845.00 

 

We have also attached the bid tabulations from the bidders for your review. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Christopher La Follette 

Chairman/CEO 

Fidelis Management, Inc. 

 
200 South Hobart Road, Suite 200 Hobart, IN 46342 

PH 219-363-4716 FAX 219-947-1856 

www.fidelismgmt.com 

 
 



BID TABULATION
Bids Received At: J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

200 South Hobart Road, Suite 200 2720 California Road, Elkhart, IN 46514

Hobart, IN 46342  

219-363-4716 Bid Date: February 16, 2016

Bids Due: 10:00 AM

Asphalt Work Bids Read: 10:10 AM

 

Rieth-Riley NIBLOCK  

Form 96 (Revised 1987) X X
Suppl. Bid Proposal Form X X
Addenda X X
Non-Collusion Affidavit X X
Domestic Steel Cert. X X
Bid Bond X X
Financial Statement X X
AIA 305 X X

  

BASE BID $214,245 $220,789.75
Alternates

1 Add $76,488 Add $87,606.75

2 Add $9,600 Add $9,000

 

Base Bid with Alternate 2 $223,845 $229,790

 

West Side Middle School Asphalt Project

Elkhart Community Schools

Bid Tabulations

















 GCEA 
 

 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 

 
SUBSTITUTE TEACHER PAY SCHEDULE 

The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage rates for substitute teachers 
commencing on February 23, 1016

 

. 

   
* Individuals who held a license issued by the Indiana Professional Standards Board or the 

Division of Professional Standards of the Indiana Department of Education who were 
employed by Elkhart Community Schools or another Indiana School Corporation 
District, and who retired from Elkhart Community Schools or another Indiana School 
Corporation District are eligible to be compensated according to the wage specified 
above for “Certified Employees Retired from ECS or from another Indiana School 
Corporation Retired Certified Teacher with Proof of Retirement

 
.” 

Effective September 22, 2009, when a substitute is employed to substitute for a special 
education paraprofessional, the employee shall be paid $85.00 for each full day of employment 
in that position. 
 
Effective January 1, 2015, when a substitute is employed as a school nurse, the employee shall 
be paid $100.00 per day for each full day of employment as a substitute school nurse. 
 
The Executive Director of Personnel and Legal Services will review this policy annually with 
the Board of School Trustees prior to its last regular meeting in May. 
 
 
  
 December 23, 2014 

 

February 23, 2016 

Substitute License 
Permit or Certified 
Teacher Working 

as a Substitute 

Substitute Permit or 
Regular Teaching 

License  

Certified Employees 

(after 45 day’s 
serving as an ECS 

substitute during the 
school year) 

Retired from ECS or 
from another Indiana 
School Corporation* 

 

Retired Certified 
Teacher with Proof of 

Retirement* 

Full day $85.00 $95.00 $100 $100.00 $125.00  

One-half day $45.00 $50.00 $ 55 $55.00 $70.00 



GDBA-6 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 
PARAPROFESSIONALS’ COMPENSATION PLAN  
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for paraprofessionals to be 
effective January 1, 2016. 

 
A. No B.A. or B.S. Degree in Education 
 
Step ECS Experience as Paraprofessional    Hourly Rate 

  A B 

1 0 days or more, but less than 64 days 
(Probationary Rate) 9.68 9.17 

2 64 days or more, but less than 1 year 9.80 9.51 

3 1 year or more, but less than 2 years 10.28 10.01 

4 2 years or more, but less than 3 years 10.81 10.49 

5 3 years or more, but less than 4 years 11.31 10.97 

6 4 years or more, but less than 5 years 11.73 11.38 

7 5 years or more, but less than 6 years 12.25 11.87 

8 6 years or more, but less than 7 years 12.71 12.33 

9 7 years or more 13.23 12.84 
   

B. B.A. or B.S. Degree in Education  
   
Step ECS Experience* as Paraprofessional 

  * subject to Sections 2-A-5 and 2-B-2 
Hourly Rate 

  A B 

1 0 days or more, but less than 64 days 
(Probationary Rate) 

10.39 10.13 

2 64 days or more, but less than 1 year 10.81 10.49 

3 1 year or more, but less than 2 years 11.31 10.97 

4 2 years or more, but less than 3 years 11.73 11.38 

5 3 years or more, but less than 4 years 12.25 11.87 

6 4 years or more, but less than 5 years 12.71 12.33 

7 5 years or more 13.23 12.84 
Key: Column A = Less than four hours/day employees 
 Column B = Four or more hours/day employees (In addition, the three percent (3%) employee 

contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart Community Schools.) 
 
 
 

Section 1.     PARAPROFESSIONALS’ WAGE SCHEDULE 



2 December 8, 2015 February 23, 2016 

 
A.   Paraprofessional with no B.A. or B.S. Degree 
 

1. An employee who does not possess by January 1 of each year a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of 
Science degree in education from an accredited four-year college or university shall be classified as 
a "paraprofessional" and shall be paid a wage in accordance with the Wage Schedule, pursuant to 
Section 1-A of this Policy. 

 
2. Any paraprofessional with thirty (30) or more but less than ninety (90) semester hours credit as 

described in part 4 of this section shall be placed on Step 3 of the salary schedule after successful 
completion of probationary employment. 

 
3. Any paraprofessional with ninety (90) or more semester hours credit as described in part 4 of this 

section shall be placed on Step 4 of the salary schedule after successful completion of probationary 
employment. 

 
4. All semester credit hours must be a part of a regular college or university program leading to a B.A. 

or B.S. degree in education, and a letter of verification shall be submitted to the Director of 
Personnel for approval before credit towards experience is granted. 

 
5. Verified experience as a teacher, substitute teacher, or educational aide will be evaluated to 

determine placement, but in no case will an employee be placed at Step 8 or higher. 
 

6. Executive Director of Personnel and Legal Services/Designee may place paraprofessionals in 
hard to fill positions (e.g. emotionally disabled, intense intervention) on steps 4 – 8 of the 
Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule at their date of hire. 

 
7. No change in wage status due to earned credit hours shall be made at any time other than January 1 

of each year. 
 
8. Paraprofessionals employed on or before January 1, 1976, who possess a B.A. or B.S. college 

degree in a field other than educational shall be eligible for placement on Section 1-B, 
Paraprofessional Wage Schedule. 

 
B.   Paraprofessional with a B.A. or B.S. Degree 
 

1. Upon completion of a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree in education, a 
paraprofessional shall be classified, beginning January 1 of the year following completion of said 
degree, as a "paraprofessional" and shall be paid a wage in accordance with the Paraprofessional 
Wage Schedule, pursuant to Section 1-B of this Policy. 

 
2. Verified experience as a teacher, substitute teacher, or educational aide will be evaluated to 

determine placement, but in no case will an employee be placed at Step 6 or higher. 
 
C. Paraprofessionals assigned to emotionally disabled classrooms as well as special education 

classrooms where custodial care and lifting are required shall be paid a differential of $1.00 per hour 
over their existing rate.  In addition, paraprofessionals who are required to perform pre-trip 
inspections of activity busses will be paid a differential of $1.00 per hour over their existing rate. 
 

D. Elementary library paraprofessionals and keyboarding instructional paraprofessionals shall be paid a 
differential of $1.00 per hour over their existing rate. 

Section 2.    EXPLANATION OF SCHEDULES 



IGBC-E 

 
Proposed New Board Policy 

 
STUDENT EMAILS 

Elkhart Community Schools (“ECS”) students, in grades 3 through 12, may be provided with a 
school corporation electronic mail (“email”) account.   The primary purpose of this account shall 
be for students to communicate with school staff, outside resources related to school 
assignments, and/or fellow students for education-related purposes.  Limited occasional and 
reasonable personal use of the account is permitted, provided the use complies with applicable 
school policies and law, does not interfere with the email system, and does not disrupt the 
operation of the schools. 
 

A. All ECS-issued student email accounts are the property of the Elkhart Community 
Schools. Student use of their ECS email account must be in compliance with this policy, 
Board Policy IGBC, and all other policies adopted by ECS. Students and their 
parents/guardians accept all responsibility to understand school corporation policies 
related to the use of ECS provided technology and an ECS email account. Students are 
responsible for messages sent from their accounts and are not to share their passwords 
with anyone other than their parent/guardian. 
 

B. At the sole discretion of the Superintendent and within the bounds of applicable law, 
student email accounts, by grade level, may be granted “full access” privileges with the 
ability to communicate from and to most any email address on the Internet, may be 
granted “limited access” privileges which can only send and receive to other ECS 
accounts, or they may be granted some amalgam of the two, depending on the 
appropriateness to the grade levels of the students being served. 

 
C. Email sent or received is not confidential, and students should not have any expectation 

of privacy regarding the content their emails.  While ECS does not make a practice of 
monitoring email, the administration reserves the right to retrieve and review the contents 
of user emails as necessary, including any which may already have been deleted by the 
sender and receiver.  ECS may create filters to scan for and eliminate files and or 
messages which are unsafe or are unrelated to school operations. 
 

D. Accounts will be created at the time of student enrollment, or at any other reasonable 
time during the school year.  When a student is first provided a school corporation email 
account, the student’s school shall provide the student and their parent/guardian 
information regarding how to access the account, safe use of email, and a copy of this 
policy.  Thereafter, ECS shall provide information regarding student email annually in its 
Student/Parent Guide. 
 

E. Accounts will be suspended upon student graduation, withdrawal, or any other separation 
from enrollment.  The district assumes no obligation to deliver or otherwise make 
available information that a student has stored in an email account once that student has 
separated from enrollment.  Email from suspended accounts will be deleted regularly 
except in cases where the suspension of service was a result of misconduct for a student 
still enrolled or in cases where the information is subject to litigation hold.  Any emails 
archived automatically by a system process will be kept for only thirty (30) days.   

 
F. Communication through the ECS email system will exhibit common sense and civility. 

Students are expected to report to a building administrator any unusual emails such as 
those which might be considered threatening, bullying, obscene, a violation of this school 
policy, or an attempt to lure them into dangerous or illegal behaviors. Students should not 



forward chain letters, jokes, or graphics files. Students are not to disclose personally 
identifiable information such as home telephone numbers, cell phone numbers, or home 
addresses in emails. 

 
G. The use of the email system is a privilege and may be revoked by ECS when, in the sole 

judgment of the ECS, a student has used email in a manner which violates the terms of 
this policy or any other policy adopted by ECS, including but not limited to the 
Guidelines for Good School Order, Rules for Student Conduct, Bully Prevention Policy, 
and the ECS Non-Discrimination Policy.  

 
 
 
 

February 23, 2016 
 
 

 
 

 
 





























 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  February 23, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee effective 6/1/16: 

Geraldine Geiger Cleveland/Grade 4  30 Years of Service 

 

c. Health Leave – We recommend the approval of a health leave for the following employee: 

Amy Miller   Roosevelt/Special Education 

Began:  8/2/16   End:  5/26/17 

 

d. Maternity Leave – We recommend the approval of a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Kimberly Wallace  Beardsley/Grade 1 

Begin:  3/28/16   End:  5/6/16 

 

 

e. Personal Leave – We recommend the approval of a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Jason Yoder Rupp  Central/Math 

Begin:  8/2/16   End:  5/26/17 

 

f. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Stacey VanEck   ESC/Psychologist 

Began:  8/9/06   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation -  We report the resignation of the following classified employee: 

Brenda Miltroka  Central/Custodian 

Began: 8/1/12   Resign:  2/23/16  



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

b. New Employee – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employee: 

 

   Suzanne Ragsdale  Monger/Paraprofessional 

   Began:  12/7/15   PE:  2/22/16  


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - Pinewood
	Building Report - Pierre Moran
	Minutes - Regular Meeting February 9 2016
	Minutes - Work Session February 9 2016
	Minutes - Work Session February 16 2016
	January 2016 Account Balances
	Fund Loan
	Recommendation for Award
	West Side Letter of Recommendation
	Bid Tabulations
	Valic Resolution Plan 002
	Valic Resolution Plan 005
	Valic Resolution Plan 006
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy GCEA
	Board Policy GDBA-6
	Board Policy IGBC-E
	IGBC-E

	Grant - IYI Conference
	Grants - EEF February 2016
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report

